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This is one of many sections that contain information, documents, letters, newspaper 
articles, pictures, etc. of the St. Matthews Fire Protection District.  They have been 
collected and arranged in chronological order.  These items were collected, 
organized and entered into a computerized database by Al Ring. Last revised in 
2023. 
 
There were many people who helped with this project over the years, however 3 
deserver special mention.  Rick Albers, John M. Monohan, Jr. and Jack Monohan. 
 
 
All graphics have been improved to make the resolution as good as possible, but the 
reader should remember that many came from copies of old newspaper articles.  
This also applies to other items such as documents, letters, etc.  Credit to the source 
of the documents, photos, etc. is provided whenever it was available.  We realize that 
many items are not identified and regret that we weren’t able to provide this 
information.  As far as the newspaper articles that are not identified, 99% of them 
would have to be from one of three possible sources.  The Courier-Journal, The 
Louisville Times or one of the Voice publications. 
 
Please use this information as a reference tool only.  If the reader uses any of the 
information for any purpose other than a reference tool, they should get permission 
from the source.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1930 
 

Reorganization of the St. Matthews Voluntary Fire Association. 
 
By 1930, both the St. Matthews Fire Association and the Community Club were failing.  The town 
was sure to loose everything unless something was done.  The town was having many meetings to 
keep the Community Club going.  The leaders wanted to have a membership drive and revive the 
club.  Their biggest issue was helping the Fire Department.  
 
Through the efforts of the St. Matthews The Booster (local newspaper) using headlines every 
week, and new leadership in the Community Club, the town decided to act.   
 
In January the Community Club reorganized and the fire department board agreed to let the 
Community Club meet with them. 
 
Jesse Ogden became President of the Club, and they held a big membership drive. They got many 
of the areas leading citizens to speak out for the department.   
 
January 1930:  The Booster:  Fire Equipment Needed — Representatives Inform Fire Chief, Actu-
arial Bureau Will Give St. Matthews 3 Months To Make Necessary Improvements.  Unless This Is 
Done Your Fire Rates May Be Increased. 
 
On Wednesday of this week two representatives of the Actuarial Bureau called on Mr. Andrew 
Neichter, Chief of the St. Matthews Fire Association and informed him that the bureau would give 
St. Matthews three months in which to take steps to improve the fire department of this town.  
They feel that the present equipment is inadequate to cope with the situation that is developing 
with the growth of this section.  This means that unless our people get behind the present Fire 
Committee and help raise money to get the equipment necessary to meet the demands of the Actu-
ary Bureau there will be a chance for every one to be called on to pay more insurance.  Now WHY 
pay more insurance?  Why not spend this money on new and needed fire equipment on whatever 
may be necessary for the betterment of the Fire Department.  The Bureau has had men in this ter-
ritory on five different occasions.  They have looked the situation over and each of the recent fires 
have been investigated.  The Fire Department Committee of the Community Club will meet Fri-
day night at the home of Mr. Wm. Hoertz and at this meeting Mr. Charles Roberts, the chairmen 
will no doubt have a real program and report to offer the Club at the regular Community Club 
meeting. 
 
It will be the duty of every member of the community to attend this meeting and keep in touch 
with all that is going on.  Don’t stay away, depending on the other fellow to go but go yourself___
(missing words)____ your moral support and countenance.  On Wednesday of this week the Fire 
Department did its best with the equipment it has when a fire started at the home of Mrs. Welch 
on Cornell Place and the property was damaged to the extent of about $800.00.  The Eight Mile 
House fire during the past week removed and old landmark of this territory, having been built 
and established by Mr. Martin Ochsner forty years ago and was famous as an inn and for its 
chicken dinners.  Mr. Zach 
Wilhoyte is the present 
owner of the property.  
These recent fires should 
be sufficient to make all 
realize that the territory is 
growing rapidly and needs 
more and better protection 
in the way of up-to-date 
equipment.  (Missing next 
sentence.) 
 
Center Front Page, below 

Headline completely 
across front page—Fire 

Equipment Needed. 
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January 1930:  The Booster, part of article, do not have headline.  To be sure the loss of fire equip-
ment alone would mean to each and every resident of St. Matthews, the payment of an additional 
$25.00 to $30.00 in insurance rates and I cannot conceive the idea that this alone is not worth while 
supporting our organization.  A committee consisting of the following:  Fred Wooten, J. J. Elder, 
Wm. J. Rueff, P. Herm, A. L. Stumler, W. J. Butles, Mrs. Wagner, J. J. Butler, Wm. Hertz, 
Charles Roberts, Louis Schweitzer, John Nuxol, Fred Simmer, Andrew Neichter, Jerry Diggens, 
has volunteered to canvas the homes of St. Matthews with a personal request that residents may 
come to the big meeting on Thursday, January 30, at the Evelawn Theater.  Please give this com-
mittee you support because their unselfish work is entirely for the benefit of our community.  Ac-
cording to the ideals of American citizenship, the home should always come first and the St. Mat-
thews Community Club is pledged to work for the welfare of its homes and citizens. 
 
Articles from The Booster, we think in January 1930:  Only parts of them. 
 

 



1930 
 

January 9, 1930, The Courier-Journal   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 10, 1930, The Courier-Journal    February 20, 1930, The Courier-Journal    
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Courtesy St. Matthews Crossroads of Beargrass, 1999, by Samuel W. Thomas, Beargrass-St. Mat-
thews Historical Society.  Were some STMFD meetings were held.  On Lexington Road. 
 
 
 
February 20, 1930:  The Booster: Arti-
cle stating how to report a fire.  It stat-
ed to call Ogden Pharmacy and give 
address. 
 
February 23, 1930:  The Booster, Arti-
cle stating what the Club had done for 
the department so far: 
 Paid off $900.00 debt on the 
Model T Ford fire truck. 
 Paid $800.00 towards the fire 
house. 
 Paid $200.00 for the fire siren 
for the alarm system. 
 Paid for helmets and fire coats 
for the freighters. 
 Paid for the heat for the fire house. 
 Paid for telephone for fire captain.  (Chief) 
 Sponsored Boy Scouts 
 Held biggest parade in Louisville, advertising St. Matthews. 
  
February 27, 1930:  The Booster:  Fire Damages I. S. Homan Home.  A fire which started in the 
home of Mr. I. S. Homan Jr. in Ormond Place, did quite a bit of damage.  Through the good work 
of the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Department and Louisville the blaze was extinguished, the 
cause was not determined. 
 
February 27, 1930:  The Booster:  J. J. Diggens Home Destroyed By Fire.  The friends of our for-
mer popular President of the Community club extended there sympathy to Mr. J. J. Diggens for 
the loss of his home on Ridgeway Avenue.  The fire which broke out at 5 o’clock Sunday morning.  
The blaze started in the kitchen.  His loss was about $6,500.00 and he had some insurance. 
 
March 4, 1930:  Eight mile House burned to the ground.  This was a roadhouse dance hall, located 
east of the old toll house.  It had been erected 48 years before by Martin Ochsner and operated by 
him for fifteen years before changing ownership several times. 
 
March 20, 1930: The Booster: ALL PEOPLE WHO HAVE DONATED TO FIRE DEPARTMENT 
AT ANYTIME ARE ENTITLED TO VOTE—So Be Sure To Attend Meeting Thursday Night, 
March 27, Schuler Motor Co., Hall. 
 
St. Matthews is beginning her spring business with matters of serious and vital interest to the peo-
ple.  A special meeting is being called by the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Association for the pur-
pose of electing a Board of Directors so that work of campaigning for the Fire Department may 
begin as soon as possible.  At a meeting of the St. Matthews Community Club, which by the way 
was one of the best attended under the present administration, the matter of the Fire Department 
was one of the main issues of the evening.  Mr. Wm. Hoertz, chairman of the fire committee, hand-
ed the Community Club a written report on the conditions found by his committee regarding the 
present fire equipment and also explained that the Actuary Bureau had given St. Matthews three 
months time in which to secure proper equipment for the town in order to hold the present rate of 
insurance.  The committee conferred with the officers of the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Associa-
tion, Incorporated, and they agreed upon a special call meeting at which time directors will be 
elected to serve until, July when the regular election of the fire Association will be held. 
 



 1930 
 

It is planned by the Community Club Fire Committee to work with the Fire Association securing funds to buy new equipment.  
According to the law of the St. Matthews Fire Association all people who have contributed to the Fire Association in the past 
are members, qualified to vote and are urged to attend this special meeting at Schuler Motor Company Hall, Thursday night, 
March 27, 1930 at 8 o’clock.  Everybody is included in this invitation, so make no mistake but keep this special date free from 
other engagements and show your interest by appearing in person. 
 

A report on the St. Patrick’s night dance was made by the chairman of the dance committee who turned over a check for 
$117.73 to the Club.  Another dance is scheduled for Easter Monday night and again the price of admission for gentlemen will 
be fifty cents and for ladies twenty-five cents. 

 
March 20, 1930: The Booster:       Below much bigger headline part of which says, —Fire Association Calls Meeting For 
Election 



 1930 
 
March 1930:  Special meeting:  The Board of Directors resigned, and a special election was held 
for new members to run the department until July when the Articles of Incorporation stated they 
had to hold elections.  This was the beginning of a new and better department. 
 
The new Board quickly agreed to start raising funds for a fire truck, and then ordered one. 
 
April 3, 1930:  The Booster:  Volunteer Fire Association Hold Fire Meeting.  Recent Fires Should 
Cause St. Matthews People To Give Whole Hearted Support to Secure Better Equipment.     The 
Volunteer Fire Association with its newly elected directorate and officers held its first meeting on 
Monday evening at Schuler Motor Company Hall and invited the Fire Committee of the St. Mat-
thews community Club to join with them in discussing plans for getting new fire equipment.  This 
important matter was brought before the body of men and plans will be formulated for beginning 
a drive to raise funds as soon as word is received from the Actuarial Bureau as to the sort of equip-
ment the Bureau desires St. Matthews to have in order to retain the insurance rate which the town 
is now enjoying.  Many other ways and means were suggested as to the best method for raising 
money to cope with the present situation.  During the winter there have been several fires, recently 
the Diggins fire, the Smith Homan 8 Mile House, and only Wednesday morning, the home of Mr. 
Leo Edelen on the Shelbyville Road was damaged by flames.  These disasters should be enough to 
make people think seriously but this is never done until these disasters hit us and then we are 
ready to say what should be done which is like locking up the stable after the horse is stolen.  This 
way of putting off until the last is natural, but the people should get together and come forward 
without waiting to be called on to do their part.  We feel that the committee in charge of soliciting 
contributions will not ask any one to do more than he or she can possibly do.  It will meet again 
next Monday evening for a further discussion of the contemplated drive to secure the new and 
badly needed equipment.  Remember “he who gives quickly gives twice,”  and show you public 
spirit by rallying around the association and community club in assisting this worthy undertaking. 
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March 20, 1930, The Courier-Journal 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Courtesy https://historiclouisville.weebly.com/
east--some-
suburbs.html#PhotoSwipe1536980957473 
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April 1930, The Courier-Journal: 

 
Local “Paper Boys,” notice oval Badges 

on pants.  
 

Left to right, Raymond Wills, Melvin 
O’Neal, Carl Kempf, Raymond Kempf,  
Cecil Steigers, Manager A. W. “Chip”  
Redman, Marvin Douglas, and Alvin 
Kempf  
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May 3, 1930, The Courier-Journal:    June 7, 1930, The Courier-Journal 
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April 24, 1930:  The Booster:  Fire Destroys Barn.  The place of Mr. F. Kirchner on Chenoweth 
Lane caught fire Thursday, and a two story stable was destroyed.  The fire department again cov-
ered itself with glory by its timely and good work.  The property belongs to Mr. Robert McCarty. 
 
May 29, 1930:  The Booster:  Fire Destroys Auto At Cornell Park, Wednesday Morning.  The auto-
mobile of Mr. M. R. Loop of Cornell Place, was damaged by fire Wednesday morning.  The extent 
of damage was not estimated. 
 
July 2, 1930:  Fire at the State Penitentiary in Frankfort, Kentucky.  We do know that we only sent 
man power, but St. Matthews as well as Lexington, Louisville and other Volunteer units did re-
spond and help. (We do not know how they got there.)  There was $200,000 damage, with two 
slightly injured people.  The part of the penitentiary that burned was the Chair Factory.  We also 
know that Louisville got the call at 2:45 p.m.  The Louisville apparatus, in charge of Captain John 
Highland, battalion chief of the fifth district, was sent to Frankfort a few minutes after the call.  
Captain Thomas Kitterman, First District battalion chief, replaced Captain Highland in charge of 
the detachment after Captain Highland’s automobile developed engine trouble in St. Matthews. 
 
Engine Companies # 3 and 10, each composed of six men, went to Frankfort.  Captain Claude 

Thompson was in charge of Engine # 3 Company and Captain Edward Kraus was in charge of En-
gine # 10 Company. 
July 3, 1930:  The Booster:  Fire Association Election, Wed., July 9th.—Officials Elected Recently 
Filled Unexpired Terms of Others—Articles of Incorporation Call For Election Every July Every-
one Invited.  The St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Association will hold its regular election of officers 
next Wednesday night, July 9, at 8 o’clock p.m.  
 
All people who have contributed to the Association at any time are entitled to vote.  Seven direc-
tors will be selected and these seven directors will call a special meeting to elect the officers.  At the 
time the present officers were elected it was just for the unexpired time of the officers who re-
signed at that period, the articles of incorporation call for the election in the month of July.  The 
Fire Department is one of the most important to every citizen of this community.  It should be 
worth their while if all property owners would pause and think what the fire apparatus and pro-
tection means to St. Matthews.  Without them their insurance would be doubled, but now while we 
have the Fire Association functioning for our protection it would be not only a wise but vital thing 
for us to keep behind it, assist it in every way and uphold it officers in doing their level best to 
maintain it.  This is a  little thing for us to do, it does not call for any great expenditure, for than 
we would be forced to pay in insurance without it.  Show their interest in their work, their appreci-
ation of the time and attention they give to something that is for the good of all.,  Therefore all 
property owners should attend the coming meeting, because it is for their benefit.  No matter 
whether you are a member or not and if you can save twenty-five cents or a dollar a year for this 
protection, it is certainly worth your while to do so.  Don’t make any other engagement for July 
9th, and make up your mind to be present at Schuler Hall and regard your Fire Association as a 
saving fund in a safety bank for it will certainly save your home, your property and your purse 
from higher rates if you make this little deposit with the Association. 
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July 3, 1930, The Courier-Journal: St. Matthews sent manpower to the scene— 
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July 3, 1930, The Courier-Journal: St. Matthews sent manpower to the scene— 
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July 3, 1930, The Courier-Journal: St. Matthews sent manpower to the scene— 
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July 3, 1930, The Courier-Journal: St. Matthews sent manpower to the scene— 
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July 3, 1930:  The Booster:      Fire Association Election, Wed., July 9th         (Bigger head line) 
 

 
 
July ??, 1930:  The Booster:  Directors Re-Elected To Head Fire Association For Coming Year.  
Campaign Now On To Raise Money For Equipment.  The St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Associa-
tion held its regular election of directors – as the articles of incorporation call for an election in Ju-
ly of each year.  Seven directors are then elected and these in their turn elect a president, secretary 
and treasurer at a future meeting. 
 
A number of subscriptions were turned in at this meeting so it now looks as if the campaign for 
funds will prove a successful one.  It was also stated at this meeting that a regular column will be 
run in the Booster, carrying the name of each one who has made a donation to the Fire Association 
and this list will appear each week with additional names added and something of an educational 
nature appearing also in an article which will make publicly known the necessity of this financial 
aid for our Fire Association.   
 
Following are the directors re-elected:  James Rudy, James Butler Jr., Wm. Lausman, Bert Nally, 
Jos Beierle, Andrew Neichter, Jos. J. Elder. 
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July 19, 1930:  The 
Booster:   
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Letter from STMFD archives, undated but may be around this time: 
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July 1930.  The Booster:  Association Campaign Under Way.  All Asked To Do Their Bit And Help 
Make This A Success. The fire campaign which will be started to raise funds to purchase the new 
fire equipment for St. Matthews people and which got under way several weeks ago will be pushed 
vigorously during the coming four weeks by the different men who have kindly volunteered their 
services.  These gentlemen will canvass the territories assigned them and will solicit funds and also, 
pledges of financial aid for the new Fire Department.  It is hoped by the Fire Association that all 
will lend their help to this campaign so that adequate protection may be secured for this territory.  
This project is one of greatest importance to the community and every citizen should be vitally in-
terested in his own behalf as will as that of his fellow citizens.  Remember also that all who are so-
liciting or calling upon you are not paid one cent, but are giving their time and services out of a 

sincere desire to aid the com-
munity in which they live.  If 
everybody said “why should I 
give anything, somebody else 
will do it and save me this 

trouble,” And if such spirit as this prevails, where there will be no 
low insurance rate in St. Matthews, because no public spirited men 
would get out and work for the food of the shirkers.  Now the idea is 
to get out and get under and over this project – lend a helping hand 
to make it a go and when the task is successfully accomplished every 
man can lay back and say with pleasure, “I at least did my part and 
what more could be asked?” 
 
 
July 30, 1930:  The Booster:  Which Do You Think Is More Im-
portant – Whistles Or A Fire Department.  By An Observer.   The 
writer has been greatly interested in reading the complaints that 
have been made in the papers about the whistling of trains.  Even 
the city papers have had articles written to them on this subject, one 
article criticizing the whistling while another criticizes the writer 
who objects to the noise. 
 
In my opinion there are things in a community of far greater and 
more vital importance than the whistling of a train.  In St. Matthews 
for instance, there is our fire department struggling for its existence 
and yet a necessity of such importance that none can question it. 
 
Now Mr. Worker, only think if you went away to work leaving your 
wife and babies at home and your home was to catch fire and with 
no adequate protection.  Just this fact alone would make you worry 
but if you knew there was good equipment for fighting a fire it 
would certainly ease your mind.  And suppose that during the night 
or in the depths of winter weather there would be a fire at your 
home.  With the equipment provided as it should be, you could call 
the fire department, knowing that it would reply and work to save your home from destruction.  
These are just a few things that could happen and surely an up to date fire department, with eve-
rything needed for doing splendid service to the people is a matter of far more importance to a 
community than the blowing of whistles and should be attended to first. 
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July 1930:  The Booster:  Fire Association Workers On The Job.  Jos. Beierle Receives $100 Dona-
tion Toward New Equipment.  The Fire Association men who have been canvassing during the 
past week have done very well and several nice donations have been made.  Mr. Jos. Beierle, one of 
the workers in the campaign has received one donation of $100 besides a number of smaller ones, 
all of which were appreciated.  It is hoped that by the next issue of the paper that we will be able to 
run a list of the names of the donors to this fund. 
 
A lot of people in a community seem to have little or no trouble finding fault with insignificant 
things, while letting an important matter like the Fire Association go unheeded.  No one can say 

however, that the Fire question is 
not one of the most serious in our 
community.  We need fire equip-
ment that is evident, so lets put 
our shoulders to the wheel and 
help secure it, each man doing is 
part, so that working together 
success may be assured and St. 
Matthews protected by adequate 
equipment. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
July 31, 1930:  Monday of this week a fire started at Beechwood Station on the Shelbyville Road, 
which caused a lot of uneasiness for a time.  A lot of signboards, dry grass and telephone poles 
were burned.  For a time it looked like the Pea-
cock Inn would go, but the fire department of 
Louisville and St. Matthews assisted by men from 
the Plumbing establishment of J. J. Butler com-
bined to quench the flames.  It was a close call in-
deed.  The volunteers did them selves proud. 
 
July 31, 1930:  New hydrant installed on Bauer 
Avenue at a cost of $350.00. 
 
August 7, 1930:  The Booster:  75 Men Fight Field 
Fire.  One of the greatest dangers entailed by 
drought, leaves and grass are bone dry, and their 
have been several big fires about St. Matthews 
and the surrounding country.  One broke out on 
the property of G. B. and Norbourne Arterburn 
about four miles east of St. Matthews.  Close by 
was another on the land of J. J. Butler.  A force of 
75 men worked hard on these fires and on one at 
Coral Ridge on the farm of Bohenan. 
 
 
Courtesy St. Matthews Crossroads of Beargrass, 
1999, by Samuel W. Thomas, 2/20/1926, Power 
line repair, this shows the Arterburn property. 
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August 14, 1930, The Courier Journal  Edited article 
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August 14, 1930:  The Booster:  You Want Fire Protection, Actuary Bureau Gives St. Matthews 
Thirty Days To Secure Equipment.  KENTUCKY ACTUARIAL BUREAU, Louisville Kentucky, 
G. H. Parker, Manager.  August 6, 1930.  Mr. J. D. Roby, Chairman, St. Matthews Town Board, 
St. Matthews, Ky.  Sir:  FIRE TRUCK—A recent inspection of the fire truck in your town dis-
closed the fact that it is in a very poor and dilapidated condition and has outlived its usefulness. 
Some time ago we agreed to give your community ample time to purchase a modern fire truck, this 
we have done, in the meantime the old fire truck has deteriorated to such an extent that it is prac-
tically useless. 
 
Because of the above condition we wish to advise that unless immediate steps are taken to provide 
a modern pumper within the 
next thirty days we shall be 
compelled to remove an credit 
for protection and rate the 
town on the 10th class basis. 
 
We hope that this step will 
not be forded upon us and 
that we may have a favorable 
answer from you within the 
next few days.  Yours very 
truly, G. H. Parker, Manager. 
 
August 14, 1930:  The Boost-
er:   
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August 21, 1930:  The Booster:  Part of headline above—Cash and Pledges Department—Meeting 
Called For Thursday Eve., August 28th at Bethel Hall.  A joint meeting of the St. Matthews Com-
munity Club and the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Department was held Thursday evening with 
several of the volunteer solicitors making their reports.  Up to the present time the workers have 
done well, but what the Fire Association needs is more workers in order to speed up the work.  
The Fire Association now has in the neighborhood of $900 in cash and pledges of money and in or-
der to expedite matters a large meeting will be held at Bethel Hall next Thursday night when alt 
least five hundred citizens are expected to be present and take and active part in the deliberations.  
All that the Fire Association asks is the cooperation of all as the money put into the purchase of 
new fire equipment means that the present insurance rates will stay as they are, whereas if proper 
equipment is not secured the increase in fire insurance rates will be from 35 to 40 percent which 
we certainly believe the people of this section would not like and moreover it would do property 
values no good.  Now whether you are interested in a new fire equipment or not , at least do the 
community the favor to being present Thursday and get the inside facts and understand what this 
business is which we are trying so hard to put over. 
 
Don’t let this slip you memory and don’t fall to the present at Bethel Hall Thursday evening, Au-
gust 28 at 8 o’clock. 
 
There is a time 
in our lives and 
in our commu-
nity when op-
portunity 
knocks on the 
door and no 
matter whether 
we think it is 
opportunity or 
the prohibition 
officers, let us 
hasten to an-
swer the knock. 
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August 30, 1930, The Courier-Journal—EDITED 
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September 3 & 12, 1930, The Courier-Journal 

 
September 4, 1930:  Mr. Rudy became President 
of the Association and the fire department was 
re-organized. 
 
September 11, 1930:  The Booster:  All Citizens 
Invited; $2129.00 In Pledges and Cash Now On 
Hand.  The St. Matthews Fire Association is 
coming along slowly but surely in its work to-
ward the purchase of new fire equipment.  At the 
last meeting of the Association at Bethel Hall the 
treasurer reported $2,129.00 in cash and pledges 
on hand.  Of course this is a nice showing but not 
near enough to allow us to accomplish what is 
necessary to do.  It is the opinion of the writer 
that it is not necessary to get equipment that will 
cost $8,000 or $10,000 but to get such as will be 

durable and last at a reasonable price as possible.  An equipment that will be o.k. with the actuary 
Bureau.  After all this is all that St. Matthews has to do, without trying to please any special indi-
vidual,  Or course this does not mean that $8,000 should not be raised if it be possible to do so, and 
if such sum as this is raised the balance should be kept in bank for all required needs or any emer-
gency that might arise. 
 
The question of considering what Louisville will do later on is entirely an unsettled problem that 
should not enter into the present campaign at all.  All St. Matthews people need to do is to look af-
ter the present needs of the town and probably for the next ten years.  No contact can be made 
with Louisville that in case of annexation will bind that city to take over our pumper, pay anything 
towards it or allow anything on it. 
 
Another meeting has been called for next Thursday night at Bethel Hall when the Fire Association 
will meet in conjunction with the Community Club and the prices of equipment and different 
makes will be brought up.  All residents of St. Matthews and surrounding territory are invited and 
whether you are a member of either or both organizations your presence is desired and your views 
for or against the proposition solicited.,  Don’t forget, Bethel Hall, Thursday evening, September 
18, 8 o’clock p.m. 
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September 18, 1930:  The Booster:  Dance Proceeds For Community—Prepare Program For Fall 
Season.   

 
 
 
 
 

September 18, 1930:  The Booster:  $8,000 to $10,000 
Needed to Supply St. Matthews Fire Needs.  The St. 
Matthews Volunteer Fire Association held its meeting 
immediately after the Community Club and a number 
of discussions were held on the floor.  The Secretary 
was instructed to read the bids of the various manufac-
turers of fire equipment after a motion had been passed 
by the floor. 
 
The different fire apparatus ranged in prices from 
$4,400 to $8,000.  These prices of course, can be 
changed by the directors of the Fire Association in the 
matter of leaving this or that part of the equipment off.  
For instance something that would be unnecessary for a 
town the size of St. Matthews.  It seems now that at least 
from $8,000 to $10,000 will be necessary to meet the de-
mand for St. Matthews.  After some discussion the 
meeting was adjourned and no time set for any special 
meeting of the organization. 
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September 18, 1930:  The Booster:     October 13 & 20, 1930, The Courier-

Journal 
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November 16, 1930, The Courier-Journal 
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By the end of 1930 the department had close to $2,000.00 in money and pledges, they had ordered 
“Betsy,” but there troubles weren’t over. 

 
The new Board Members 

 
Joseph Beierle:  Born in St. Matthews in 1878, he was a florist early in life with Nanz 
and Nunner and then became a Jefferson County policeman.  He was a firefighter on 
the department from 1931 until 1933.  He also served on the Board of Directors from 
1930 to 1934.  He was married to Elizabeth Reis and died at age 68. 
 
 

 
 

 
J. J. Butler:  Born in 
Louisville in 1894.  
He was in the plumb-
ing business for most 
of his life.  He was a 
firefighter from 1919 
until 1932.  He served 
on the Board of Di-
rectors from 1930 
until 1934.  

 
Courtesy St. Matthews Makes Its 
Bow, by James Speed, 1938. 
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James J. Elder:  Was born in Taylorsville, Kentucky in 1886.  Moved to St. Matthews 
in 1913.  Was married to Julia, they had 2 sons and 4 daughters by the 1930 census 
and lived on Nanz Avenue.  He had many careers before finally joining the L & N. 
Railroad.  He served as Treasurer of the Board of Directors from 1930 to 1934.   
 
 
 
 
 

 
William Henry “Will”  Lausman:  
Born in St. Matthews 1894, he was a 
member of Bethel Church of St. Mat-
thews and was famous for the turtle 
soup suppers he helped organized for 
the church.  In 1917 he was a clerk at 
the St. Matthews Produce Exchange  
In 1920 he was an assistant cashier at a 
local bank and lived on Bauer Avenue, 

married to Leeda.  In 1927 he went into the Life Insurance busi-
ness and he served on the Board of Directors from 1930 to 1931.  
He died March 20, 1977. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Voice of  
St. Matthews,  
December  
26, 1957 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1930 
 

 
F. B. “Bert” Nally:  Born in New Haven, Kentucky in 1887, In 1921 he opened a resi-
dence, barber and beauty shop at 3929 Frankfort Avenue.  He died in 1946 at the age 
of 54. He served on the Board of Directors from 1930 to 1931 during the reorganiza-
tion of the department. 
 
 
 

 

Courtesy Ekstrom Library, University of Louisville, 1994.17, #.002, 1953. 
Courtesy of Bluegrass-St. Matthews Historical Society: 



1930 
 

Andrew W. Neichter:  Was born in St. Mat-
thews January 27, 1898.  He went to grade 
school here and two years of high school at Ho-
ly Trinity.  He was a mechanic for A. J. Eline 
for 35 years before retiring to San Diego Cali-
fornia.  He was married and had two sons.  He 
joined the department in 1919 and was the de-
partments first Captain, and became the Chief 
of the department in 1920 serving in that ca-
pacity until March 9, 1939.  He was also a 
member of the Board of Directors from 1930 
to 1934.  He returned to Jeffersontown, Ken-
tucky and died at the age of 94, August 26, 
1992.  
 
 

 
From: ST. MATTHEWS Don C. Leahy, English 101-B, Miss Lyons, May 1938 

 
This association operated for two years on a helter-skelter, hit or miss basis.  The first one to the 
garage, or the first one to know where the fire was, drove the fire truck.  It was one of those old 
time Ford trucks capable, I think, of doing all of twenty miles an hour.  Assuming that our appa-
ratus got to the fire — and it did even though some one had to pull it — there was quite some con-
fusion as to what everyone should do.  So in 1921, Andrew Neichter, a mechanic working in Eline’s 
Garage, which is right next to the garage that houses the fire truck, was appointed Fire Chief. 
 
Let me say in passing, that here is really a firefighter.  Neichter does not get paid for his services.  
He is no public hero — being disliked by more people in St. Matthews than liked.  But he is a fire-
fighter.  In the densest of smoke, in the thickest of fires, he fights it and how!  He acts as though 
crazy around a fire.  He has been termed fool-hardy and declared not to have much sense.  In case 
of a fire, or better to say when fighting a fire, he rushes in where angels — nay even devils, would 
fear to tread.  He searches through the smoke for the source of the fire armed only with his hose, 
and somehow, miraculously, he finds it, and if it can be put right out, he puts it out.  I have seen 
this individual dash into a smoking inferno with never a though of safety — only the thought of 
getting to the fire and extinguishing it.  He has been overcome by smoke, passed out, been taken to 
the hospital, seriously ill from lung burn from swallowing too much smoke or fire.  But he comes 
back.  And, Ladies and Gentlemen, remember he gets no pay for his job, he is still a mechanic at 
Eline’s Garage.  This is his only means of sustenance.  Whether he fights fires with such gusto 
from a personal satisfaction or from some other reason, whether from the feeling of prestige or 
what?  One will never know.  He has 
been declared insane for his throw-
ing-caution-to-the wind-attitude.   
But insane or condemned, he fights 
fires and gets results.  That’s why 
Andy Neichter is still alive and still 
chief of the St. Matthews Volunteer 
Fire Association. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1930 
 

Courtesy, http://digital.library.louisville.edu/cdm4/item_viewer.php?CISOROOT=/
heraldpost&CISOPTR=419&CISOBOX=1&REC=9       Louisville Country Club, August 8, 1930, 
ULPA 12994.18.0430 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

James Hubbard Rudy:  James Hubbard Rudy was born March 25, 1875, at the family residence 
which was located at what is not 4205 Rudy Lane.  He was a direct descendant of Jacob Rudy, who 
settled in this vicinity in 1790.  He attended local schools completing eight grades and three years 
of advanced education at Greathouse.  Was a member of the Beargrass Christian Church, a dea-
con of the church, and a member of the 
Middletown Masonic Lodge No 732.  
Her worked for the Kentucky Litho-
graphing Company for 30 years start-
ing in 1895.  In 1900 he married Car-
rye Edinger, and they had two sons, 
Hubbard and Millard, and one daugh-
ter, Carolyn.  He joined the Board in 
1930 and served for 3 years as presi-
dent of the board and served as direc-
tor until 1935 until his death. 
 
 
 
 
 



25 

1930 
 
The following men helped during the 1930 re-organization of STMFD.  Some collected money oth-
ers served in the St. Matthews Community Club, and helped the department: J. Butees, Jerry J. 
Diggers, William Ely, P. H. Herm, W. F. Hertshead, William Hertz, William Lynch, John Nuxol, 
Charles L. Roberts, Lewis H. Schweitzer (became board member and firefighter), Fred Simmer, 
A. L. Stumler, Mrs. Wagner, and O. L. Wilkins, also helped during this time. 
 
J. Butees  
 
Jerry J. Diggers 
 
William Ely 
  
P. H. Herm 
  
W. F. Hertshead 
  
William Hertz 
  
William Lynch 
 
John Nuxol 
  
Charles L. Roberts,  the 1930 census showed a Charles L. Roberts living on Bauer Avenue owning 
a lawn mower shop, being 59 years old born about 1871 in Kentucky, married to Rosie.  
 
Lewis H. Schweitzer, Became board member and firefighter for STMFD. 
 
Fred Simmer 
  
A. L. Stumler 
 
Mrs. Wagner  
 
O. L. Wilkins, There was an Otto L. Wilkins on McCrady Avenue who was a manager at an insur-
ance company based on the 1930 census.  In 1930 he was 42, born in Kentucky about 1888 married 
to Eleanor and had 2 children, Eleanor E. and Babette A. Wilkins. 
 
 
 
Courtesy, A Walk With Ray,  
Memories of Raymond Jo-
seph Kempf.  The newspa-
per boys in the 1920s and 
1930s sometimes official 
sometime not, helped the 
STMFD firefighters in 
fighting fires.  These are 3 
of the Kempf brothers. 



 1930 
 



1931 
 
Courtesy http://www.lakedreamlandfire.com/fdnewshistory/lakedreamlandfdhistory.html   
(December 2009)                                                    Lake Dreamland Fire Department 
 
A brief history of the Lake Dreamland Fire Department, The Department was founded in 1931 by 
neighborhood farmers to protect their property and that of the neighbors. The first fire apparatus 
was a converted farm truck with a water tank mounted on the back. It was housed in a garage lo-
cated on Lake Dreamland Road. The department covered an area from the City of Louisville, on 
the north, Fairdale on the east, the Ohio River on the west and the Jefferson County line on the 
south. 
 
The Lake Dreamland Fire Department operates out of two stations and provides protection to the 
Cane Run Road area, Lake Dreamlands area includes the largest chemical complexes and petrole-
um storage facilities in the state of Kentucky they are located along the Ohio River better know as 
"Rubbertown". The area protected by Lake Dreamland Fire Department covers approximately 
17.5 square miles. This area now is smaller but covers from the City of Louisville on the North, the 
City of Shivley on the East, to Pleasure Ridge Park on the south and Ohio River on the West. 
 
Currently the Lake Dream-
land Fire Department is a 
Combination Department, 
We have 5 fulltime person-
nel and 43 Volunteers, Our 
fulltime staff works nor-
mally 8 am till 4 pm Mon-
day through Friday. We 
are 1 of 21 Departments 
that provide fire protection 
to the citizens of Jefferson 
county (Metro Louisville) in 
Louisville, Kentucky. If any 
incident is dispatch after 
these hours Volunteers re-
spond after being dis-
patched by pagers through 
Police Fire and Emergency 
Medical Services Commu-
nications Center. The vol-
unteers upon dispatch re-
port to their respective fire 
stations to respond fire ap-
paratus to the emergency in 
a timely manner.  
 
 
 
The Model T Ford truck 
was sold to the Lake 
Dreamland Fire Depart-
ment, located southwest of 
Louisville in the Cane Run 
Road and Camp Ground 
Road area. 
 
 
February 7, 1954:  The 
Courier-Journal.  We had 
sold Lake Dreamland our 
1921 Model T. Ford. 



1931 
 
A. W. Neichter was still Chief and Irwin P. Bauer became Assistant Chief.  The department also 

had a Captain and a Lieutenant. 
 

Irwin P. Bauer:  Born in St. Matthews in 1892.  He went to 
grade school here, and then went to Manual High school.  
Went into the family grocery and restaurant business.  
They lived on Ridgeway Avenue.  He remained in that busi-
ness until he sold it in 1943.  He married in 1922, but had 
no children but raised four of their relatives.  Both he and 
his wife attended Holy Trinity Church all their lives.  He 
was also an active member of Zachary Taylor Post 190 of 
the American Legion.  He joined the department in 1925 as 
a firefighter and became assistant chief in 1931, serving in 
that position until 1938.  He served on the Board of Direc-
tors from 1931 until 1932.  He died December 24, 1957.  
Ralph Kemp remembers he ran the bar at their grocery 

and his nick name was “Ducky.“ 
 
Courtesy, St. Matthews The Crossroads of Beargrass, by Samuel W. Thomas, 1999:    Excerpts 
 
Early in 1887, brothers Louis H. and John E. Bauer had purchased the two-story, brick grocery 
and tavern at the crossroads that Henry Holzheimer had erected and operated.  They were joined 
by their younger brother Henry.  Their father John Bauer, had purchased a small triangle of land 
on the Brownsboro Road from Richard S. Veech in 1868.  He had been a blacksmith for Ainsli, 
Cochran & Co., before setting up his own shop near his residence, where he died in 1880. Bauer’s 
other sons, Charles C. and Albert W. Bauer, expanded the business into wagon manufacturing.  In 
1909 his Charles died and Albert took over and with his sons modernized the shop.  From such 
meager beginning came Bauer’s since 1870 restaurant.  As the art of wagon making disappeared, 
A filling station emerged in its place run by Edward L. Swartz, who had worked for the Bauer’s.  
 
The grocery part of Bauer Bros. did not give up the ghost.  Henry, Albert, Irvin and Martin Bauer 
erected a fine, brick grocery east of the new bank, where the feed store had been.  They handled 
“fancy groceries, vegetables, fruits and meats while soft drinks are carried at all seasons.”  The 
second floor housed a public hall, where monthly dances of the Penrose Club, were held.  Bauer 
Bros. grocery was sold by Louis Bauer’s son, Irvin, in 1943.   
 
Fire rates were lowered to 96¢ per $100. 
 
 
All Board Meetings were held at J. J. Butler’s 
plumbing business. 
 
St. Mathews Community Club continued to 
meet with the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Firefighting improved, more men joined the department, and the town began to care, except when 
it came to giving money.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 1931 
 
William Lausman left the Board and Louis H, Schweitzer came on the Board and became Secre-
tary. 

 
In 1910 he was an Engineer at City Hospital, in Louisville, KY.    



1931 
 
A 1931 Seagrave 500 GPM pumper was delivered to the department. It was named “BETSY” and 
became the towns pride and joy. 
 

The departments financial troubles still were not over.  For years, they had to hide 
Betsy from the Seagrave Company to keep it from being repossessed. 
 
“Betsy” made all of the town’s parades, hundreds of fire runs each year, and even 
going as far as Shelbyville, Kentucky.  It pumped many basements out during the 
1937 flood until its pump blew up.  Betsy was removed from first line service in De-
cember of 1973 after 42 years of active service.  It was still used as an auxiliary, 
training truck for many more years. It is now a show truck.  In the 1990s it was com-
pletely restored.  It is still the pride of the firefighters and many of the community. 
 

Betsy was eventually paid for. 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



1931 
 
January 1931: Specifications of “Betsy.”  



1931 
 
January 1931: Specifications of “Betsy.”  



1931 
 
January 1931: Specifications of “Betsy.”  



 1931 
 
February 2, 1931: 



 1931 
 
March 14, 1931, The Courier-Journal:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 April 25 1931, The Courier-Journal:

   
  



 1931 
 

April 24, 1931 Part of a letter: 



1931 
 
July 20, 1931, Monday:  Board Meeting:   



1931 
 
August 10, 1931, Monday:  Board meeting:   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1931 
 
September 13, 1031, The Courier-Journal  September 14, 1931, Monday:  Board Meeting:   



1931 
 
September, 1931:  Typical letter sent out to people who made pledges: 

 



 1931 
 
October 1931:  Fire at Mr. Hellmans residence at 424 Iola Road, also Harris property on Hillcrest Road. 
 
October 5, 1931:   



1931 
 
October 12, 1931, Monday:  Board meeting:   



1931 
  
October 13, 1931:       October 13 &15, 1931, The Courier-Journal 



1931 
  

November 2, 1931:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 1931:  There were three field fires on Thierman Lane.  An auto and straw stack fire on 
the Monohan place, and a field fire at 
Brownsboro Road and Chenoweth Lane. 
 
November 9, 1931, Monday:  Board meet-
ing:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTE:  Ordered 7 #2520 Silver Badges 
from 
 the C. D. Reece catalog.  



1931 
 
November 17, 1931, The Courier-Journal   December 7, 1931, The Courier0Journal 



1931 
 

Three Generations of the Monohan Family 
 

John Monohan Jr. is far right with his brother Henry Monohan next to him 
E. S. Monohan with his wife Alice O’Ferrall in the center 

Edward S. Monohan, Jr. and family on left of picture 
John M. Monohan, Sr. and family on right of picture 

 
Standing—Thomas, Eleanor, Edward III, Charles, Mary Ellen, Sadie, Alice, Henry, John Jr. 

Sitting—Edward Jr., Edward Sr., Alice, John Jr. 
Front Row—Maurice, Eleanor, James 

 
December 1931, letters:  Note new letterhead paper, believe first letterhead for the department. 
Still in use in 1932—    STMFD Letterhead 



1931 
 
December 14, 1931, Monday:  Board meeting:   



1931 
December 28, 1931, The Courier-Journal 



1931 
December 28, 1931, The Courier-Journal 



 1931 
 
December 1931, letters:  Note new Letter head paper, believe first letter head for the department. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 



 1931 
 
New Board Members & Helpers: 
 
 
Joseph A. Hoerter:  Director 1931 to 1932.  Joseph A. Hoerter was born about 1868 and died De-
cember 2, 1943.  The 1930 Census shows him living on Wiltshire Avenue, a salesman at a photo 
shop, born in Indiana, married to Agnes L. being 62 years old and having two children, Frances C. 
Hoerter and Henry C. Hoerter.  An 1890 directory showed him working at 307 W. Chestnut , W. 
D. Gatchel, as a bookkeeper.  The minutes of the STMFD board clearly show Mr. Hoerter as being 
part of many meeting and making motions, etc.  However I can find no mention of his election.  He 
may have been part of the St. Matthews Community Club which met with the STMFD board at 
that time, we just do not know. 

 
 
William Frank Hoertz:  St. Matthews Community Club, Fire Committee member, 1930 to 1931.  
William was born October 31, 1872, to Jacob and Mary Hoertz in Lexington, Kentucky. He was 
married to Bertha Rittnauer Hoertz and we think they had one child William J. Hoertz.  In the 
1930 Census he lived on Bauer Avenue and was in building/construction.  In 1918 registration card 
he is listed as a brick layer and married.  He died December 9, 1946 of congestive heart failure and 
is buried at St. Louis Cemetery, December 12, 1946.   He was living at 414 Macon Avenue at the 
time of his death.  The name is German and is pronounce Hertz.  The St. Matthews Community 
Club meet with the STMFD Board for a few years and helped save the department, mainly by 
raising money.   
 
Charles J. Wilhelm:  St. Matthews Community Club, Fire Committee member, 1930 to 1931.  Ac-
cording to the 1930 Census Charles was born May 28, 1885, he was 44, lived on Oxford Place, was 
demonstrator for yeast, was born in Kentucky, and married to Lorena E. and had a son Charles J. 
Wilhelm, Jr. age 14.  His registration card in 1918 show him as City Foreman at Fleischman Yeast 
Company 
 
OBITUARIES                  This would be of his Charles J. Wilhelm’s son: 
Charles John Wilhelm, 83, of 230 O'Farrell died Monday, Dec. 13,1999.  A native of Jefferson, 
Ky., Mr. Wilhelm was a son of the late Charles J. and Lorena Sandmann Wilhelm and was the 
widower of Celesta Kipp Wilhelm. He was retired as a superintendent for Wellington Puritan and 
was a member of the University of Georgia Catholic Center.  Memorial services will be at 10:15 
a.m. today at the UGA  Catholic Center with Father Jack McDowell officiating. Burial will be held 
at a later date in Evergreen Memorial Park.  Survivors include nieces and nephews.  Memorials 
may be made to the Emphysema Foundation, c/o the American Lung Association, 2452 Spring 
Road, Smyrna, 30080.  Bernstein Funeral Home has charge of arrangements. 
Athens Daily News, Thursday, Dec. 16, 1999 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1931  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1932 
The department started the year trying to collect money.  There was over $1,000 in pledges they 
had not been able to collect.  The business community was sent letters asking for help, and the de-
partment even approached the County Judge and Fiscal Court but were rejected.  Remember, we 
were in the great depression at this time.   
 
All Board meetings were held at J. J. Butlers, and the Community Club always met with the 
Board. 
 
The Board provides insurance for the firefighters for the first time. 
 
 

 

Board Of Directors 
Irwin Bauer start 1931 
Joseph Beierle 
J. J. Butler 
J. J. Elder 
J. A. Hoerter (Minutes show attended many 
meetings) 
T. H. Huffman start July 1932 
W. “Will” Lausman, end 
F. B. “Bert” Nally, end 
Andrew W. Neichter 

James H. Rudy 
Louis H. Schweitzer 

Officers 
 
Chief Andrew W. Neichter 
Assistant Chief Irvin Bauer 
Captain J. Duvall 
Lieutenant Justin Clyde Wilken 
 
 
 

Firefighters 
 

T. A. Baker 
John A. Beierle 
Joseph Beierle 
J. J. Butler 
Paul H. Fleming 
R. S. Frank 
John Haeberlin 
Richard C. Herdt 
Ted H. Huffman Sr. 
Carl A. Hulswede, Sr. 
R. J. Kleet 
Rudolph L. Lineback 
Henry A. Monohan 
Louis H. Schweitzer 
Fred William Wootton, Jr. 
George John Wurster 
Raymond A. “Bud” Young 
 
In the 1920’s and 30’s many citizens helped the volunteers but 
were not on the “roster.” 
 
 

1931 
 

The St. Matthews Community Club attended the 
Board meetings and the Fire Committee members 
were: William Hoertz & Charles Wilhelm  



 1932 
 
January 11, 1932, Monday:  Board meeting:   



1932 
 
Appears to be part of February Board Minutes:    



1932 
 

 March 14 and April 11, 1932, Mondays:   Board meetings:   



1932 
  
March 17, 1932:   



1932 
  
March 28, 1932, The Courier-Journal:   April 8, 1932, The Courier-Journal:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 10, 1932, The Courier-Journal:   



1932 
 

April 18/20, 1932: 
 



1932 
 

April 30, 1932: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 9, 1932, Monday:  Board meeting:   



1932 
 
May 20, 1932:   



1932 
 
May 31, 1932:  Fiscal Court of Jefferson County, It was moved by commissioner Clarke and se-
conded by Commissioner Heyburn that the request of the St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Association 
of a donation be denied.  “Carried.”  A donation request from the St. Matthews fire department, 
which has a $4,000 deficit, was rejected after County Attorney Coleman told the court it is without 
authority to appropriate for this purpose. 

 
 



1932 
 
May 1932:  INSURANCE:  R. L. Kleet, an agent for the Reisart Insurance Agency, and also a fire-
fighter, provided the first insurance for the department.  We believe we were one of the first de-
partments to get insurance for the firefighter and department.  Their company did not have a 
written policy, so our people wrote the policy and coverage that they wanted and they put a price 
on it. 
 
Around 1947 or 1948 we switched to the Tachau Insurance Agency, mainly because their company 
offered a better policy. 
 
Around 1955 J. V. Kaster an independent agent, and a member of the fire department, handled 
our insurance.  In about 1964 Mr. Kaster sold his company to Hobday & Kinker Insurance Agen-
cy.  They then handled all our insurance.  This insurance covered liability, lives of the firefighter, 
and medical insurance.  
 
In 1968 the Jefferson County Government started providing medical insurance, but St. Matthews 
kept their own until 1972. 
 
In 1972 the state started providing Workman’s Compensation Insurance on the firefighters and 
the fire department 
found that its medical 
policy would not pay 
along with the State 
policy, so the medical 
policy was dropped. 
 
June 13, 1932:  Board 
meeting: 
 
 
 



1932 
 
July 6, 1932:  Board meeting: 
 
 
 



1932 
 
July 6, 1932:  Board meeting: 



1932 
 
Courtesy, http://digital.library.louisville.edu/cdm4/item_viewer.php?CISOROOT=/
heraldpost&CISOPTR=198&CISOBOX=1&REC=10               Zachary Taylor National Cemetery, 
caretaker’s house, caretaker was James Dell, March 25, 1932,  ULPA 1994.18.0203 
 
Below—Zachary Taylor monument, March 25, 1932, ULPA 1994.18.0200 
 
 
 
 



1932 
 
July 11, 1932:  Board meeting: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
July, 1932:  Theodore Harold Huffman, Sr. came on the Board and served as Secretary.  Irvin 
Bauer left the Board. 
 

Theodore Harold Huffman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Born in Booneville, Indians March 25, 1897.  Early in his life he moved to St. Matthews area.  He 
worked for the L.& N. Railroad all his life.  He was very active in the St. Mathews area and very 
well know.  He served in the Navy in World War I and helped start the Zachary Taylor Post 180 
American Legion and was its first Commander.  He also helped start the St. Matthews Bethel 
Church.  He joined the department in 1929 and stayed until about 1946.  He served on the Board 
of Directors from July 1932 until July 1933.  He was married and has two sons, one of which also 
was a member.  He died in November 6, 1973. 



1932 
 
July, 1932:   



63 

1932 
 
August 8, 1932:  Board meeting: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
NOTE:  Do not know who Mr. Hoerter is who attended meeting.  He also attended next meeting.   
 
The Board hired Mr. O. S. Kremp to run a drive to obtain subscribers and pay him 10% commis-
sion.  He never did this.   



1932 
 

August 12, 1932: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
August 16, 1932: 
 
 
 



1932 
September 7, 1932, GenDiaster, Ancestry.com:    Do not know is STMFD responded. 
        September 7, 1932, The Courier-Journal 



1932 
 
September 7, 1932:  Board meeting:   



1932 
 
September 30, 1932:   



1932 
 
October 5, 1932:  Board meeting: 



 1932 
 
November 2, 1932:  Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December 6, 1932:  Board meeting:   



1932 

 
 
 

Board Of Directors 
 
Irwin Bauer end July 1932 
Joseph Beierle 
J. J. Butler 
J. J. Elder 
J. A. Hoerter (Minutes show attended many 
meetings) 
Ted H. Huffman, Sr. start July 1932 
Andrew W. Neichter 
James H. Rudy 
Louis H. Schweitzer 
 
 

Officers 
 
Chief Andrew W. Neichter 
Assistant Chief Irvin Bauer 
Captain J. Duvall 
Lieutenant Justin Clyde Wilken 

Firefighters 
 

T. A. Baker 
John A. Beierle 
Joseph Beierle 
J. J. Butler 
Paul H. Fleming 
R. S. Frank 
John Haeberlin 
Richard C. Herdt 
Ted H. Huffman Sr. 
Carl A. Hulswede, Sr. 
R. J. Kleet 
Rudolph L. Lineback 
Henry A. Monohan 
O. R. Sands 
Louis H. Schweitzer 
Fred William Wootton, Jr. 
George John Wurster 
Raymond A. “Bud” Young 
 
In the 1920’s and 30’s many citizens helped the volunteers but 
were not on the “roster.” 
 
 

1932 

The St. Matthews Community Club attended the 
Board meetings and the Fire Committee members 
were: William Hoertz & Charles Wilhelm  



1933 
1933: The Greathouse School was having a safety day, and borrowed all the firefighters helmets.  
During the day the fire alarm sounded, and they looked out the window on to Shelbyville Road 
and saw the fire truck go by, and none of the firefighters had helmets. 
 
Betsy had a cracked cylinder head.  This of course had to be fixed. 
 
All Board meetings were held at J. J. Butler’s business on the second floor. 
 
January 7, 1933:  Board Meeting:  The Board agreed to talk to Anchorage about trading Betsy.  
The Board felt that they could not pay Seagrave for Betsy due to the depression, and the effect 
that it had had on pledges.  J. J. Butler and J. J. Elder were appointed to deal with this. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 11, 1933, letter:    

 

 

 



1933 
February 22, 1933, The Courier-Journal  March 4, 1933, The Courier-Journal 



1933 
April 15, 1933:  Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 3, 1933:  Board meeting:      May 5, 1933, The Courier-Journal 



1933 
February 1, 1933:  Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
March 1, 1933:  Board meeting:   



1933 
Courtesy January 1933, Ekstrom Library, University of Louisville, #CSO 126350, Termination of 
Meridian at Shelbyville Road.  Bethel evangelical Church at left. 

“How St. Mathews looked in 1933.” 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

May 15, and 18, 1933:  



1933 
May 18, 1933:  
 



1933 
May 25, 1933:  Special Board meeting at Bethel Hall:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

May 29, 1933: 



1933 
May 31, 1933: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 31, 1933:  Special Board meeting.   



1933 
May 31, 1933: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 5, 1933: 
 



1933 
June, 1933:  The department again approached the businesses and community for money and this 
time they were successful.  They we able to raise enough money to pay Seagrave $1,200.00 and 
have a little towards maintenance for the coming year. 
 
June 9, 1933: 



1933 
June 15, 1933:  Letter to Mr. DeJarnatt, Sales Manager, A & P Tea Company, 901 South 15th, St., 
Louisville, Ky.  Dear Sir;  Referring to your conversation with Mr. Roy H. Foreman, in connec-
tion with which you desired certain information regarding the status of our St. Matthews Fire As-
sociation equipment. 
 
In 1930 the Association purchased a new engine in replacement of the worn-out imitation in order 
to prevent a change in the insurance rating of our community from the 9th to the 10th class, which 
would have nearly doubled the insurance premiums.  The people from whom we purchased the 
engine of course retained title until it is paid for on equal yearly installments of approximately 
$1,000 for the next three years.  Prior to the purchase of this equipment we made a drive for 
funds and realized cash and pledges (the town is not incorporated and consequently we could only 
appeal to the generosity of the citizenry) approximating $3,000.  The depression came and nearly 
$1,000 of the pledges have never been paid.  In the meantime, we have defaulted on our yearly in-
stallments to the extent of about $1,300 and the owners of the equipment have stated they would 
repossess the engine as of today if the installment was not met.  We have asked for a few days ex-
tension and believe we will get it.   
 
In order to avoid possible loss of the engine, however, and the resultant loss of protection and in-
creased rates (the Actu-
arial Bureau advised a 
few days ago we would 
be put into the 10th class 
if the equipment is lost) 
we inaugurated an inten-
sive drive last week to 
obtain funds, and so far 
we have met with success 
but have not accumulat-
ed the $1,300 necessary, 
and Mr. Foreman was 
delegated to call on you 
for a subscription in or-
der to help us out, save 
additional expense on the 
community and continue 
the protection. 
 
We shall of course great-
ly appreciate what you 
may feel disposed to give, 
and without, of course, 
suggesting such amount, 
I may say that $25.00 has 
generally been the dona-
tion from individual 
business houses in St. 
Matthews. 
 
Because of the urgency of 
the matter, we shall be 
grateful if you will give 
us your prompt decision.  
Yours Truly, Treasurer. 
 
 



1933 
June 16, 1933:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 20, 1933: 
 
 



1933 
June 21, 1933:  Board meeting:   
 

June 21, 1933:                                                                                      June 22, 1933: 



1933 
June 22, 1933:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 22, 1933:                                                                                       



1933 
June 22, 1933:  Letter on St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Association letterhead paper from J. H. 
Rudy, President. 
 

FELLOW WORKERS OF THE FIRE ASSOCIATION: 
 
The remarkable results accomplished by you folks in soliciting funds to keep our fire engine, and 
the splendid response to your pleas by the citizens of  St. Matthews, are a source of much gratifi-
cation to us all, and on behalf of the Association I want to thank each and every one from the bot-
tom of my heart. 
 
And while the cash obtained is hardly sufficient as yet to meet all payments now due, including 
some interest, we are so confident that the additional amount can be obtained that we expect to 
pay the lessor of the engine, in the next few days about $1,000 to avoid further interest.  The les-
sor, on the 16th instant, extended the dead line to July 1st to pay the balance. 
 
We will need about $400 additional to put us in proper shape and have a little left over for current 
maintenance, gasoline, etc. 
 
May I ask, therefore, that you concentrate on the drive a few more days to pull us over.  Doubtless 
some of you have still others in your territory you have not seen; maybe some whom you saw and 
did not give will now help out a little to make the campaign 100%.  Their civic pride in the face of 
the generous response 
of most of their neigh-
bors, coupled with the 
assurance of keeping 
the engine, the protec-
tion and cheaper insur-
ance than without it, 
will prompt them to 
give a dollar or two.  
Every dollar counts up. 
 
Go back to see them 
now, please.  See what 
you can do.  We know 
you can get it.   WE 
MUST NOT FAIL 
NOW. 
 
 



1933 
June 23, 1933: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
June 29, 1933: 



1933 
July 1, 1933:  Treasurer  
Report: 
 
 
 
 
 



1933 
July 4, 1933:  Fire on Alice Monahan's place, she sent donation. 
 
July 14, 1933:  Annual Board meeting:   
 



1933 
July 19, 1933:  Board meeting:  



1933 
New STMFD Board Members: 
 

 
William E. Ehlig, Sr.:  Born in Louisville August 16, 1894.  He attended Louis-
ville grade schools and went to Manual High School.  He then went to work 
for Louisville Tin and Stove Company, eventually becoming Vice President of 
the company.  He married in 1922 and attended the Bethel and Beargrass 
Christian Church in St. Matthews.  He was a member of the Louisville Rotary, 
and president of the Louisville area Boy Scouts.  He joined the Board in 1933 
and served as President until he resigned because of work pressure in 1934.  
He died April 2, 1949. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Paul H. Fleming:  Firefighter 1930 to 1935, Trustee 1933 to 1934.  Born in Louisville, June 5, 1898 

he attended boarding school and then went to Male High School.  He started 
with the L. & N. Railroad on completion of high school and stayed with them 
all his life.  During World War II her served with the 728 Railway Operation 
Battalion as a Captain.  Though born a Catholic Mr. Fleming usually attend-
ed St. Matthews Bethel United Methodist Church with his wife Sara and they 
lived on Wallace Avenue.  They had two daughters.  He was also a member of 
Zachary Taylor Post 180, American Legion.  He was a firefighter from 1930 
to 1935 (maybe not officially) and joined the Board in 1933 and served top 
1934.  He died January 27, 1951. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Courtesy University of Louisville, ULPA 1994.18.0716, Administration building, Central State 
Hospital, Lakeland, Kentucky 1933. another structure STMFD protected at the time. 
 



1933 
August, 1933:  Fire at 18 Indian Hills Trail. 
 
August 2, 1933:  Board meeting:   



1933 
August 31, 1933: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September  
1,  1933, The  
Courier-Journal 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1933 
September 6, 1933:  Board meeting:   



1933 
September 18, 1933, The Courier-Journal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
September 25, 1933: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1933 
October 4, 1933:  Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
October 12, 1933, The Courier-
Journal 
 

 
 
 



1933 
November 1, 1933:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 8, 1933:  Board meeting:   
 

 
 
 



1933 
1933 Courtesy Ekstrom Library University of Louisville, October 11, 1933, Caulfield & Shook, 
CSO 129339, Looking West on Shelbyville Road with Plehn’s Bakery at left, looking toward Lou-
isville. 
1933 Courtesy Ekstrom Library University of Louisville, October 11, 1933, Caulfield & Shook, 
CSO 129340, Looking Easton Shelbyville Road with Plehn’s Bakery at right looking toward Mid-
dletown. 



1933 
A place in time, The story of Louisville’s neighborhoods, 1989—Courtesy of The Courier-Journal 
& Louisville Times Company: 
 
Plehn’s Bakery sat along the rail line on Frankfort Avenue (now Shelbyville Road) in 1933.  The 
same bakery is at the same site today.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
December 10, 1933, The Courier-Journal 



1933 
December 11, 15, 1933: 



1933 
December 13, 1933:  Board meeting:  



1933 
December 13, 1933:  Board meeting:  
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1934 
 

In 1934 many of the Board members had to resign because they worked for the L & N Railroad 
which brought in a new policy stating no member of their organization could be an office holder 
in any outside organization.  The Board approached 5 nearby churches, the Masons and the 
American Legion so each provide one of their members to serve on the Board. 
 
Board meetings still held at J. J. Butler’s even after he resigned from the Board. 
 
 
 
 

Board Of Directors 
 
Joseph Beierle 
J. J. Butler 
William E. Ehlig, start July 1933 
J. J. Elder 
Paul H. Fleming, start July 1933 
Ted H. Huffman, Sr. 
Andrew W. Neichter 
James H. Rudy 
Louis H. Schweitzer, end July 1933 
 
 

Officers 
 
Chief Andrew W. Neichter 
Assistant Chief Irvin Bauer 
Captain J. Duvall 
Lieutenant Justin Clyde Wilken 
 
 
 

Firefighters 
 

T. A. Baker 
John A. Beierle 
Joseph Beierle, end 
Paul H. Fleming 
John Haeberlin 
Richard C. Herdt 
Ted H. Huffman Sr. 
Carl A. Hulswede, Sr. 
Rudolph L. Lineback 
Henry A. Monohan 
O. R. Sands 
Louis H. Schweitzer 
Fred William Wootton, Jr. 
George John Wurster 
Raymond A. “Bud” Young 
 
In the 1920’s and 30’s many citizens helped the volunteers but 
were not on the “roster.” 
 
 

1933 
 



1934 
 
Numerous letters to anyone who called for fire service that was not in the St. Matthews area and 
the department charged for the service. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 3, 4, 1934:  
 

 



1934 
 
 
 
 
 
January 9, 1934, Letter: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
January 10, 1934:  Board meeting.   



1934 
January 9, 1934,  The Courier-Journal 



1934 
February 3 & March 6, 1934: 



1934 
March 3, 1934,  The Courier-Journal 
 

Courtesy  https://historiclouisville.weebly.com/east--some-
suburbs.html#PhotoSwipe1536980957473 
 



1934 
March 14, 1934:  Board meeting:   



1934 
March 15, 1934: 



1934 
March 16 & 21, 1934: 



1934 
April 4, 1934, Wednesday:  Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 18, 1934:   



1934 
April 19, 1934, The Courier-Journal   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 May 4, 1934, The Courier-Journal 



1934 
May 9, 1934:  Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
May 10 & 11, 1934: 



1934 
June 13, 1934:  Board meeting:   



1934 
July 10, 1934:   
 



1934 
July 11, 1934:  Annual Board meeting:   



1934 
New STMFD Board Members: 
 

Fred C. Boss:  July 28, 1895 to June 19, 
1988.  Fred was born in Louisville in 1895.  
He worked for the Louisville Gas & Elec-
tric Company for almost 37 years.  He 
joined the Board in 1934 and served as 
Treasurer the entire time he was on the 
Board.  He retired from the Board in July 
1975.   
 

 
Below retiring from the STMFD Board. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Thomas L. Dobson:  Was born April 2, 1894.  He 
was in the printing business and ran the Dobson 
Printing Company which operated at 147 Thier-
man Lane. He was a First Sergeant in the U.S. Ar-
my in World War I.   He served on the Board 
from 1934 until 1942.  He died March 26, 1958.  
He was a charter member of Zachary Taylor Post 
180 in 1925.  He is buried at Zachary Taylor Na-
tional cemetery, Section H Site 1444. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



1934 
New STMFD Board Members: 
 

A. J. Eline: 
 
Original Incorporator and Trustee 1934 to 1936:  Mr. Eline was born in Seneca 
Park in 1884.  He was one of earliest business men in St. Matthews.  He started 
the Overland Agency and was a Ford dealer.  He worked as a mechanic in his 
own shop.  He became a Buick dealer in 1928, then opened a Chevrolet dealer-
ship and ran that until he sold it 1955.  He also owned the Eline Realty Company 
and developed many of the subdivisions in the area.  He was one of the original 
signers of the Corporation.  He also loaned and/or gave the department money 
in its early years.  He died March 23, 1967. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R. M. Gray:   
 
Was born in Spencer County Kentucky in 1892.  He moved to St. Matthews in 
1926.  His working career started as a salesman for the Lee Tire and Rubber 
Company. Then moving to Gray and Stiglitz Tire store and finally to Rays Radio 
& Flower Shop which he ran until his death in 1939.  He served on the Board 
from 1934 until his death. 
 
 



1934 
New STMFD Board Members: 
 

Dr. James Emil Winter:  Born in Prospect, Ohio, in 1895, He had a private 
practice in St. Matthews and graduated from the University of Louisville 
School of Medicine in 1923 and served on the faculty of the school from 1925 
to 1948.  He lived on Wiltshire Avenue and was married to Margaret. They 
had two sons James D. and William B. He gave his medical services to the 
Masonic Widows and Orphans Home of Louisville. He served on the Board 
from 1934 until 1946.  He died June 30,  1970 in Dallas, Texas at the age of 
75. 
 
James Emil Winter, born March 16, 1895 in Prospect, Ohio 2nd of 6 sons of 
David Augustus and Ivy Mohr Winter Moved to Louisville in 1910, graduat-
ing from DuPont Manual HS in 1912 . 
 
Worked in lab at medical school 1913-1915; Attended college at Heidelberg 
College in Tiffin, Ohio for two years; Attended U of L 1917-1918; Served 
with base hospital unit in World War I, returning home spring 1919; U of L 

Medical School, 1919-23 playing football last 2 years, grad in 1923. 
 
Married Margarat May Dugan. at St. Luke's Reformed Church, Jeffersonville, In April 21, 1923;  
Interned at Episcopal Hospital in Philadelphia; Returned to Louisville in 1925 and entered pri-
vate practice with brother Karl D. Winter;  Three children: James (March 1925), William (May 
1926), Margaret (November 1930);  Built house at 125 Wiltshire Ave. in 1929 and lived there until 
1962;  Taught part-time at U of L School of Medicine, 1925-1948. 
 
Active in American Legion, St. Matthews Volunteer Fire Department;   Donated service to Ma-
sonic Widows and Orphans Home for 28 years;  Member Bethel UCC Church and St. Matthews 
Masonic Lodge #906. 
 
Hobbies - fishing and stamp collecting; Retired due to health in 1961, moved to Martinsville, IN, 
near son Bill and family;   Wife Margaret died may 1962; Married Frances Dugan Thomas (sister 
of Margaret) in Dec. 1963; Moved to Dallas, TX in May 1965;  Heart attack June 30, 1970 died at 
Baylor Hospital in Dallas. 
 
Miscellaneous notes: 



1934 
New STMFD Board Members: 
 
Joseph B. Zehnder:  Was born in St. Matthews October 2, 1893.  In 1923 he opened the Zehnder 
Brothers Creamery which he ran for 37 years.  He was a member of the Board from 1934 until 
1941 and than later from 1948 until his death April 17, 1963.  
 
The Voice of St. Matthews, April 25, 1963   June 20, 1963 



1934 
July 11, 1934:  Board meeting:  



1934 
Courtesy, The Jeffersonian, July 19, 1934:                Statement Of Jeff’town Volunteer Fire dept. 



1934 
July 27, 1934, The Courier-Journal 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 August 5, 1934, The Courier-Journal 



1934 
August 22, 1934:  Board meeting:  



1934 
August 22, 1934:  Board meeting:  
 

Courtesy, The Jeffersonian, July 28, 1934: 



1934 
September 7, 1934:  Board meeting:   



1934 
October 5, 1934:  Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
November 2, 1934:  Board meeting:   



1934 
December 7, 1934:  Board meeting:   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Courtesy The Jeffersonian, December 2 
7, 1934:   



1934 
Courtesy The Voice of St. Matthews, September 30, 1956:    This is a picture of what used to be the 
American Legion “Hall” where many STMFD meetings, dances, etc. were held to help the De-
partment 



1934 
 

Board Of Directors 
Joseph Beierle, end 
Fred C. Boss, start Aug. 1934 
J. J. Butler, end Aug. 1934 
Thomas L. Dobson, start Aug. 1934 
William E. Ehlig, end Aug. 1934 
J. J. Elder, end Aug. 1934 
A. J. Eline, start Aug. 1934 
Paul H. Fleming, end Aug. 1934 
R. M. Gray, start Aug. 1934 
Andrew W. Neichter, end 
James H. Rudy 
Dr. James Emil Winter, start Aug. 1934 
Joseph B. “Joe” Zehnder, start Aug. 1934 

Officers 
 
Chief Andrew W. Neichter 
Assistant Chief Irvin Bauer 
Captain T. A. Baker 
Captain J. Duvall 
Lieutenant Justin Clyde Wilken 
Lieutenant Raymond A. “Bud” Young 
 
 
 

Firefighters 
 

John A. Beierle 
Paul H. Fleming 
John Haeberlin 
Richard C. Herdt 
Ted H. Huffman Sr. 
Carl A. Hulswede, Sr. 
Rudolph L. Lineback 
Henry A. Monohan 
O. R. Sands 
Louis H. Schweitzer 
Fred William Wootton, Jr. 
George John Wurster 
 
In the 1920’s and 30’s many citizens helped the volunteers but 
were not on the “roster.” 
 
 

1934 
 


